ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 23, 2012
3:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Donald d son, Chair
Senat or Al bert Kookesh
Senat or Linda Menard
Senator Johnny Ellis

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Thonmas WAgoner
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 183

"An Act authorizing nunicipalities to exenpt from tax, by
ordi nance approved by the voters in the nunicipality, the real
property that is the primary residence of a resident who is the
wi dow or w dower of a person who was killed while in the
mlitary service of the United States; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 183

SHORT TITLE: PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON' M LI TARY W DOW ER)
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 30/ 12 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 12 (S) CRA, FIN
02/ 23/ 12 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

CELESTE HODGE, Staff

Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 183 on behal f of the sponsor.

DI CK TRAI NI, Assenbly Menber

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- February 23, 2012



Anchor age Assenbly
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 183.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 183.

VENDY LAWRENCE, Assistant State Assessor
Ofice of the State Assessor

Department of Comrunity and Regional Affairs
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Neutral on SB 183.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:34: 02 PM

CHAIR DONALD OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:34 p.m Present
at the call to order were Senators Kookesh, Menard and Chair
a son.

SB 183- PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON M LI TARY W DOW ER)

3:34: 42 PM
CHAI R OLSON announced the consi derati on of SB 183.

CELESTE HODGE, staff to Senator Bettye Davis, Al aska State
Legi slature, said the bill authorized nmunicipalities to exenpt
fromtax the real property that was the primary residence of a
resi dent who was a w dow or w dower of a person killed while in
the mlitary service. She said the legislation would extend the
exenption towards a surviving spouse, age 60 or older, of a
mlitary nmenber or veteran who qualified for the senior property
tax exenption and was killed in the line of duty. She said SB
183 would exenpt the wi dow or wi dower on the first $150,000 of
the assessed value of the real property. She said the tax
exenption would have to be approved by the voters in each

muni ci pality or borough to take effect. She said the
muni ci pality of Anchorage had considered putting the exenption
on the ballet for voters to consider in April. She said disabled

veterans and spouses of disabled veterans currently received
property tax exenptions under state |aw

3:35:31 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- February 23, 2012



SENATOR ELLI S arri ved.

3:36:41 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked if there would be a difference as to whether a
person was a wi dow or w dower to receive the tax exenption

MS. HODGE answer ed no.

CHAIR OLSON asked if the exenption applied to all branches of
the mlitary

M5. HODGE answer ed yes.

CHAI R OLSON asked if the National CGuard was included.

M5. HODGE answered yes.

SENATOR MENARD asked if the bill was patterned after
muni ci palities that provided property tax relief to permanent
residents over the age of 64.

M5. HODGE answered yes.

SENATOR MENARD commented that nunicipalities’ budgets be
affected. She asked if communities other than Anchorage have
consi dered putting the exenption on upcom ng ballets.

M5. HODGE answered that she did not know.

SENATOR OLSON asked if Alaska Minicipal League (AM.) had
provi ded feedback.

M5 HODGE answer ed no.

CHAIR OLSON asked if a city would have to pass an ordinance in
order to inplement the tax exenption

MS. HODGE answered correct.

SENATOR MENARD asked how many Al askans woul d qualify.

M5. HODGE answered that five would qualify in Anchorage.

3:40: 13 PM

DICK TRAINI, Assenbly Menber, Minicipality of Anchorage, said

the tax exenption was introduced to the Anchorage Assenbly and
the initiative was placed on the April ballet. He noted that a

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- February 23, 2012



tax exenption approved by voters would be conditional upon the
| egi sl ature passing SB 183. He said the nunicipality would take
full responsibility for covering |lost tax revenue.

SENATOR MENARD conmented on previous legislation for mlitary
w dow or wi dower that an extra year would be given to a collect
a Permanent Fund Dividend (PFD). She said legislation |ike SB
183 woul d show sensitivity and help aid wi dows or w dowers.

3:41:58 PM
SENATOR MENARD asked if a tax exenption strictly applied to
mlitary personnel killed in |ine of duty.

MR. TRANI answered yes.
3:42:59 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked about eligibility if a soldier commtted
sui ci de.

MR. TRANI answered that he did not know He said the |egislature
woul d have to define "in the line of duty."”

3:44: 00 PM
SENATOR MENARD conmented that "line of duty" nust be defined and
not ed possi ble suicide issues relating to nental illness.

SENATOR KOOKESH said the bill's title stated "while killed in
the line of mlitary service" and did not nention "in the line
of duty."

SENATOR MENARD responded that "killed in the line of duty while
inthe mlitary" was noted in the bill.

3:44: 57 PM
SENATOR KOOKESH commented that the bill's title and content were
di fferent and would have to be changed.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S, sponsor of SB 183, asked if Senator Menard
was referring to the bill or the sponsor statenent.

SENATOR MENARD responded that the bill stated "who was killed

while in mlitary service to the United States in providing for
an effective date."

SENATOR KOOKESH noted that the bill was pretty clear from what
Senat or Menard had read.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- February 23, 2012



CHAI R OLSON asked if the bill's sponsor had any conments on the
sui ci de questi on.

SENATOR DAVIS responded that she was not able to answer
questions invol ving suicide.

VR. TRANI commented that Senator Davis could contact the
mlitary base in Anchorage and find out what their definition of
sui ci de was.

SENATOR DAVI S responded that she would check with the mlitary
base.

SENATOR MENARD asked how many other states had simlar tax
exenption statutes.

SENATOR DAVI S answered that she did not know.

3:46: 46 PM
M5. HODGE responded that several states had simlar |egislation.

CHAIR OLSON noted Florida was one state. He asked if the bill
was simlar to Florida' s |egislation.

M5. HODGE answered yes. She said Arkansas, Maryland, Wsconsin
II'linois, South Dakota and Arizona had simlar |egislation.

SENATOR MENARD asked if npbst of the states were at the $150, 000
exenption | evel.

3:47:35 PM

VENDY LAWRENCE, Assistant State Assessor, Ofice of the State
Assessor, Departnment of Community and Regional Affairs, said the
bill was an optional exenption placed under the nmandatory
section under AS.29.45.030 and the state would be required to
rei mburse nunicipalities. She noted that reinbursenment had not
occurred in the last ten years.

CHAIR OLSON asked to clarify that the state would have to
reinburse the nunicipalities for the tax exenptions.

M5. LAWRENCE answered correct.

CHAIR OLSON asked if reinbursement would be on the first
$150, 000.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- February 23, 2012



M5. LAWRENCE answered correct. She said the exenptions would be
mandat ory and nust be reinbursed to nunicipalities.

CHAIR OLSON asked why there was a zero fiscal note with the
bill.

MS. LAWRENCE answered that she did not know.

3:49: 14 PM

SENATOR DAVI S said she would confirm that the state would have
to reinburse local nunicipalities for property tax exenptions.
She said the only reason why she introduced the bill was due to
muni ci palities not being able to approve property tax exenptions
w t hout | egislative approval.

3:50: 13 PM
CHAI R OLSON said SB 183 woul d be hel d.

3:50: 34 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair O son adjourned the Senate Community and Regional Affairs
Standing Conmttee neeting at 3:50 p.m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- February 23, 2012



